
Minutes 
Law Enforcement/Emergency Management Committee 

May 11, 2011 
 
Members present: Rob Reichwein, Olin Fimreite, Dick Miller, John Aasen and David Suchla (2:34 p.m.). 
 
Also present:  Emergency Management Director Dan Schreiner, Sheriff Richard Anderson, Lt. Tonya Niederkorn, 
Dave Steinhoff with Communications Service and Jim Johnson and Dave Lyga with the Highway Department.  
 
The meeting was called to order by Reichwein at 2:32 p.m. stating proper posting and notification has met open 
meeting requirements.  Motion by Fimreite and seconded by Aasen to approve the agenda as posted.  Motion carried 
4-0.   
 
Motion by Aasen and seconded by Fimreite to accept the April 13, 2011 meeting minutes as submitted.  Motion 
carried 4-0.   
 

2011 Emergency Management Budget 
Schreiner advised he was significantly under budget for the 2010 fiscal year.  Schreiner further advised that his 
budget was cut for 2011 and there are some increases expected.  One specific item Schreiner discussed was the 
automated high water warning grant.  Should this grant be approved he will need to budget for the local match 
associated with this grant.  Suchla questioned what the impact would be on the levy.  Schreiner advised that the 
additional revenue received in 2010 will go to the general fund.  He further advised that his levy request for 2011 
was a budget decrease.   
 
Communication Project Update 
The communication equipment is still staged.  There are no tower lease contracts signed at this time.  The US 
Cellular lease contracts are currently being reviewed by attorneys for US Cellular.  Once the contract has been 
reviewed by US Cellular it will be returned for a signature.  Schreiner advised that US Cellular has had the contract 
for review for approximately two weeks.  Schreiner further advised US Cellular had put May 1st as the start date on 
the lease agreement.   
 
Impact on Highway Department Communication System – There have been conversations and a propagation study 
has been completed regarding the Highway Department communication system.  The highway department is on a 
UHF communication system while emergency services are on VHF.  In order to move the highway department to a 
VHF system the county would need to locate two additional frequencies and update all of the highway equipment to 
make it VHF compatible.  Lyga advised that approximately 17 years ago the highway department attempted to get 
on a VHF system but they were unable to obtain the appropriate frequencies.   
 
Suchla questioned what it would cost to get the highway department onto the same, VHF system.  Steinhoff advised 
that he is not able to give a quote at this time but it would be a substantial cost to the county.    At this time there are 
to many variables to provide an accurate quote on the cost of adding the highway department onto the current 
system.  Suchla questioned if Communications Service would be able to locate an additional pair of frequencies.  
Steinhoff advised there is a substantial commitment on Communications Service part in obtaining the frequencies 
and there would be associated costs.  Steinhoff advised he will attempt to obtain an estimate for the cost of two 
additional frequencies.   
 
Johnson advised the highway department is still able to utilize the Wilber Lime tower under the current lease 
agreement.  He further advised that the highway department would also be able to utilize the current TCC tower site 
on Oak Ridge as well as the new TCC tower site in Strum.  Leaving the highway department communication 
equipment at the TCC Oak Ridge and Wilber Lime tower sites, as well as moving the equipment from Karlstad to 
the TCC Strum site would provide the coverage needed by the highway department without the additional costs of 
upgrading their system to VHF.  Aasen states at this time it will be more costly to move the highway department to a 
VHF system.  He feels it is more reasonable to move the Karlstad site to the TCC Strum site and leave the highway 
department on the UHF system. 
 
Miller questioned how many radio units the highway department currently has.  Lyga and Johnson advised the 
highway department currently has 50 radio units.  Replacing all of these units would be a substantial cost to the 
county.  There was discussion as to whether or not there is any advantage to dispatch to have the highway 



department convert to the VHF system.  There seems to be no advantage for the highway department to convert to 
the VHF system.  Miller also questioned the highway departments plan for tower sites.  Johnson advised they are 
planning to keep the Wilber Lime tower site and negotiate new lease agreements for the TCC tower sites on Oak 
Ridge and in Strum.   
 
 
Reichwein suggested Schreiner contact US Cellular regarding the status of the lease contract.  Suchla questioned 
how the fire departments feel about the status of this project.  Schreiner advised that some departments have poorer 
coverage and are anxious to have their communication coverage improve.    Steinhoff and Schreiner advised the 
TCC Strum and Osseo Verizon tower sites have passed their loading studies.  Steinhoff is currently working on 
adding equipment to the equipment room in the courthouse.   
 
Schreiner sent correspondence to Verizon regarding the access road and location of the shed on this site.  If the 
county is going to be responsible for maintaining the access road then that would need to be included in the lease 
agreement.  Suchla questioned Johnson on an approximate cost to fix this road with rock.  Johnson advised a rough 
estimate for rock would $2,500 to $3,000.  However, this would continue to wash from rain and would not be a long 
term solution.  Johnson further advised that blacktop would provide a more adequate road.  Suchla questioned the 
cost for blacktop.  Johnson advised without measurements he is not able to provide an accurate quote at this time.  
Johnson advised he can measure the area and provide estimates for road repairs.  Schreiner will continue to work 
with Verizon regarding the road maintenance.   
 
Schreiner advised it is his opinion that the most cost effective route for the highway department communication 
system would be to move the highway department equipment from the Karlstad site to the TCC Strum site.  
Schreiner will continue to work with the highway department on the communication systems.   
 
Funding for Narrow Band Programming of Sheriff’s Office Radios – Sheriff Anderson advised the cost to complete 
the narrow band programming for Sheriff’s Office radios would be $25 - $45 per radio.  Sheriff Anderson estimates 
the cost for reprogramming the radios will be approximately $3,000.  He further questioned if the cost of 
reprogramming the sheriff’s office radios would come from the bonded amount of the project or if it should be part 
of the sheriff’s office budget.  Suchla advised he feels when the time comes the cost for reprogramming the radios 
could come from the bonded cost of the communication project.  The committee concurred.  This topic will be 
discussed further at a future meeting.   
 
The committee questioned when the 60-day time window for testing the system begins.  Steinhoff advised when the 
system goes active and it is being used is when the 60-day time period begins.  This would be a county wide switch 
over when the transition is made.  There are two channels starting wide band and two channels starting narrow band.  
It is expected that the new system will be implemented by September.  Once the initial process is complete and the 
change over is made to narrow band there will be four channels available for use.  It is expected that the narrow 
band changeover will be completed next spring.  The transition to narrow band will not impact coverage.  Steinhoff 
advised the sheriff’s office could feasibly convert to narrow band sooner, if they choose to.  However, this would 
not free up the additional channels to be used.  The sheriff’s office will continue to research conversion options.  
Further discussion will take place at the next meeting.   
 
Squad Car Purchase 
Sheriff Anderson advised that the sheriff’s office budgeted for the purchase of two vehicles in 2011.  At this time he 
is anticipating to purchase one vehicle this year and carryover any remaining funds for purchase of vehicles in 2012.   
 
Sheriff Anderson further advised he spoke with Kevin Lien regarding vehicle purchases.  Lien advised during the 
motor pool study he learned that the state rate is not a static price.  Lien advised that in reviewing the trade in 
options it is beneficial for the county to trade-in low mileage vehicles.  He further advised that the current state 
discounts, which end on May 16th provide very attractive rates when trading in low mileage pickup trucks.  It was 
suggested that the sheriff’s office also look into the option of trading in low mileage vehicles in order to save on 
long term expenses.  Lien advised they have tried to trade-in vehicles every five years with under 60,000 miles in 
order to increase trade-in values and reduce vehicle purchase costs.   The committee advised that with the state 
discount rates and trade-in values it is in the county’s best interest, financially, to trade-in the current pickup truck 
for a newer model.   
 



Sheriff Anderson advised he will speak with the local dealerships about trade-in costs.  Sheriff Anderson further 
advised that pickup trucks are actually getting better mileage than the other squads.  In order to obtain the deal that 
Lien discussed the vehicle would have to be purchased by May 16, 2011.   
 
Motion by Miller and seconded by Suchla approving the Sheriff’s Office to trade-in the 2010 pickup truck for 
a new 2011 pickup truck at a trade-in cost not to exceed $3,000.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Sheriff Anderson advised he will also need to obtain bids to replace a squad car with high mileage. Miller advised 
the incentive to purchase another truck is the lower gas mileage and the increased trade-in value.  Reichwein advised 
if the department can get a good deal on a truck it would make sense.  Aasen stated it was a no brainer.  The 
committee extensively discussed the value of purchasing a pickup truck versus the typical squad car.  The committee 
determined that the pickup truck gets better gas mileage, has higher trade-in value and provides additional resources 
to the rural county.  The committee further determined that with the state discount rates the purchase price for a 
pickup truck is equivalent to that of a police package vehicle.  Suchla advised that the sheriff should purchase what 
he feels is best for the department as the vehicle is already in the budget.  Sheriff Anderson advised he would like 
the committee’s approval.   
 
Motion by Suchla and seconded by Reichwein to approve the purchase of vehicle to replace the high mileage 
squad, not to exceed a purchase price of $29,000.  Motion carried 5-0.  
 
Jail Inspection 
The committee was provided with copies of the annual Jail Inspection report.  Lt. Niederkorn advised that the Jail 
Inspector focused on staffing and maintenance issues.  The Jail Inspector had also requested that a maintenance 
schedule be developed.  This has been done and seems to be working so far.  The Property Committee is also being 
copied on the progress of jail maintenance needs.   
 
Sheriff Anderson advised that there was discussion with the Jail Inspector about the amount of time it takes to 
replace a vacant jail position.  He also had concerns about Jail Sergeants filling shifts.  Sheriff Anderson advised that 
he is currently speaking with jail staff about trying 12-hour shifts for a trial six month period.  It is believed that this 
will help with coverage and hopefully lower costs.   
 
Suchla advised that the Jail Inspector only makes recommendations on staff and it is not a requirement.  Lt. 
Niederkorn advised this is a recommendation but if the county would experience a major incident then the Jail 
Inspector would not support the county in the lawsuit.   
 
Sheriff Anderson further advised that the Jail Inspector did compliment and specifically the Jail Administrator in 
regards to the operation of the jail.   
 
Move Dispatch to 2

nd
 Floor & Secure Access from Jail to Court 

Sheriff Anderson advised that Corp Counsel has been consulted regarding the hiring of an architect to review 
potential jail / dispatch modifications.  Corp Counsel advised that if any changes / modifications are made to the jail 
facility the country will be obligated to pay Venture Architects for any outstanding fees associated with the contract 
that the county entered into.   
 
Suchla questioned moving dispatch to the second floor, giving dispatch access to jail cameras and operation 
systems.  Suchla advised this would also make it possible to share duties.  Suchla advised at this time the move 
could be made without adding a window or door to provide access to the jail at this time.  Sheriff Anderson further 
advised there would also be considerable training costs associated with this move, and the Jail Inspector seems to 
oppose as well.    
 
Sheriff Anderson advised he believes the 12-hour shift is the best option at this time.  This would provide increased 
coverage and hopefully reduce costs, with minimal investment by the county as opposed to the cost of moving 
dispatch to the second floor.  
 
Miller advised his concern is developing an overall plan that the county can live with for a period of years.  Suchla 
advised he has a program that allows you to draw and move walls in order to layout the space.  Suchla suggested 
bringing this program to the next meeting to develop some kind of plan.  Suchla further requested the sheriff’s office 
to contact Venture Architects to determine if they would be willing to negotiate on their contract in regards to 
expenses associated with the previous study.  Reichwein further advised Judge Damon needs to be contacted 



regarding use of this space.  The committee further discussed the need to find adequate space for individuals that 
would be displaced.  Suchla advised he will speak with Judge Damon about this issue.    Suchla and Sheriff 
Anderson will attempt to put together a plan for the next meeting.   
 
Jail Addresses 
Nothing additional at this time.   
 
Discussion of General Operations 
Nothing additional at this time.   
 
Questions Regarding Monthly Vouchers 
Monthly vouchers were reviewed.   
 

Set Next Meeting Date/Time 
The monthly Law Enforcement/Emergency Management Committee meeting will be held on Wednesday, June 22, 
2011 at 2:30 p.m. in the Packer Room.    
 
Reichwein adjourned the meeting at 5:14 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
John Aasen     
Secretary, Law Enforcement/Emergency Management Committee 
 


